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OLD DARTMOUTH TEAM FERRY BOAT -SHERBROOKE,'' 
BUILT IN 1816.

In 1816 a team-boat was built and 
launched on Sept. 30 of that year.

On Nov. 8th, the first trip was 
made with bet to Fairbanks' wharf 
at Halifax. The Dartmouth terminus 
was at the foot of Portland Street, 
the site of the present docks. The 
rates of fare as published on Augtfst 
23rd, 1817, were as follows:

TEAM FERRY
TO DARTMOUTH

Was in use in the early days 
t of the “ Recorder.”

Previous thereto boats were 
pelled by oars.

pro-!

A century of progress in the ferry 
service is aptly illustrated by the ac­

company mg cuts, one of the “ Sher­
brooke,” the old team l»oat that crossed 
between Partmouth and Halifax a 
hundred years ago, and the other 
of the “Halifax.” The old team boat 
occupied between ^ quarter and half 
an hour in crossing, and was continu­
ally laying up on account of wind and 
weather. It was propelled by horses 
walking round and round inside the 
circular house on deck, attached to a 
windlass that turned the paddle. The 
time of starting from the one side and 
reaching the other depended largely 
upon circumstances, a regular schedule 
time of departure and arrival being 
something then outvof the question.

The “Sherbrooke” has been des­
cribed as consisting of two boats or 
hulls united by a platform with a 
paddle between the boats. The deck 
wras surrounded by a-round house con­
taining a Jarge cogwheel arranged 
horizontally, to which were attached 
right or nine horses harnessed to iron 
stanchions coming down from the 
wheel. As the horses moved round, 
the wheel,, by means of connecting 
gear, revolveu the paddle.

The present ferry boats cross the 
harbor in ten minutes.

It was on the 8th of November, 
1816, when the Sherbrooke maue her 
first trip. Up to that timq the ferry 
boats were propelled by oars. In 1752 
John uonnor of Dartmouth, was 
granted the exclusive right to run a 
ferry between Halifax and Dart­
mouth, but no regular service was 
performed. The charge was three 
pence between sunrise and sunset, and 
six pence between sunset and sunrise. 
At the end of 1752 Connor was per­
mitted to assign his ferry property to 
Henry Wynne and William Man- 
thorne, they to perform the ferry ser- 

' vice under the same conditions as 
Connor.

In March, 1753, Wynne and Man- 
thorne petitioned to be allowed to 
run the ferry at stated hours in the 
daÿ, and were privileged to do so at 
8, 12 and 4 o’clock between March 25, 
and Sept. 29 and at 10 o’clock in the 
morning and 2 o’clock in the after­
noon during the rest of the year. On 
Sunday the boats were to pass only 
twice to accommodate those attend­
ing diviné service.

In January, 1756, John Rock was 
given the privilege of running the 
ferry under the same conditions as 
the previous proprietors.

In 1797, John Skerry started a pub­
lic ferry which was continued by him 
until after the steamboat company, 
which started out with the team-boat 
‘Sherbrooke’ performing the service. 
Skerry’s Dartmouth terminus was at 
the foot of Ochterloney Street and at 
the Market Slip in Halifax.

James Creighton was the propri- 
>tfetor of another ferry which ran from 
à a wharf at the foot of Old Ferry 
\#qad, where Parker’s wharf now is. 

It" was chiefly for the accommoda­
tion of persons coming from the 
country to the eastward of Dart­
mouth. This ferry property was_ ad­
vertised to let in the ‘Royal Gazette’ 
on March 19, 1817.

From the time that the team-boat 
first started the company wanted ex­
clusive right to perform ferry* serv­
ice. In 1818, James _ Creighton and 
Johp Skerry petitioned the House of 
Assembly for relief as they had main­
tained ferries at considerable expense 
and were likely to be much injured in 
consequence of the steamboat com­
pany being about to put small boats 
on the service. Skerry petitioned 
agaih in 1821, when the company ask­
ed for the sole privilege of running 
the ferry, which was refused.

After a time Skerry sold out to the 
company and retired. In the mean­
time Creighton’s ferry was leased by 
Joseph Findlay, who later was suc­
ceeded by Thomas Brewer. He retir­
ed about 1833, which left the steam­
boat company without a rival.

It was in 1815 that the Steamboat 
Company was incorporated. The com­
pany was to continue in operation 
for 25 years. The names of the orig­
inal shareholders are as follows:

Hon. Michael Wallace.
Charles Morris, Sr.
Thomas Boggs.
William- Lawson.
Frederick Major.
Jonathan Tremaine, Jr.
John Tremaine.
John Albro.
Hon. Sampson S. Blowers.
Thomas Nicholson Jeffery.
Dr. William B. Almon.
Thomas Heaverside*
John Starr.
John Stayner.
Charles Morris, Jr.
Michael Tobin. ^
Charles R. Fairbanks.
Samuel Cunard.

Henry H. Cogswell.
'Andrew Wright. /
Richard Tremaine.
Robert Hartshorne.
William Bowie.
John Clarke. p
Charles Rufus Fairbanks, secretary,
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For each passenger above ten
years of age................................ 0 0

For each passenger under ten
years of age.............................. 0 0

A horse, ox or pow........................0 1
A hog ,sheep, goat or calf... .0 0
A four wheel carriage................0 1
A gig ............ 0 0
A truck cart, butcher’s or

baker’s wagon............................0 0
A wagon or sled load of hay.. 0 2 
A wagon, or sled, returning

empty..................................... •••J }
A sled or truck load of wood. .0 l 
A sled or truck,, returning

empty .................0
A pipe, puncheon or hogshead. 0 1
A - barrel................... .................® ®
Grain or roots, per bushel....0 0 
Chest, box or trunk......................0 0

Alexander Lyle, who for some years 
had owned a shipyard in Dartmouth, 
was, in 1828, given orderd to con­
struct a steamboat of 30 borée power, 
which was called the Sir Charles Qgte 
in honor of the Admiral of that name 
of the West India North American 
station at that time. In 1832 another 
steamer was built by Mr. Lyle, which 
was named the Boxer, in honor of 
Capt. Edward Boxer, of H. M. S. 
Hussar, who, with a party of sailors 
succeeded in clearing the Sir Charles 
Ogle when she had stuck on the 
“ways” at the time of her launch­
ing, Jan. 1, 1830. In 1844, a third 
steamer was built, which was called 
the Micmac. She was 40 horse power 
and was also built by Mr. Lyle. 
About the year 1869 the Boxer was 
sold and another steambdat, which 
was built in Dartmouth, replaced 
her, known as ^fce Chebucto. 
During their many years’ service, 
these boats underwent many changes 
and additions. They performed ser­
vice for many years, and may be re­
membered by the older generation 
still, particularly the Sir Charles 
Ogle and Micmac. The latter did ser­
vice within the memory of many who 
are crossing on the ferry steamers to­
day.

In 1886 a new company took over 
the affairs of the ferry, many of the 
old shareholders remaining together 
with a number of new ones.

Edward H. Lowe was far many 
years SECRETARY and MANAGER 
of the company, and at his death, 
Capt. George Mackenzie became man­
ager. He was laid aside by illness 
and younger men were given charge. 
About two years after the formation 
of the new company, in 1888, the 
present steamer, Dartmouth, was 
placed on the service, her first trip 
being made on June 17 of that year. 
This steamer was built at Yarmouth.

The withdrawal of commutation 
privileges by the company in 1890, 
caused much indignation. The citizens 
met and formed a committee which 
purchased the steamer Arcadia on 
March 31 of that year, and carried 
foot passengers for one cent. The 
trouble eventually lead to the for­
mation of a Ferry * Commission, ap­
pointed under the provisions of Chap­
ter 83 of the acts of 1890, passed on 
April 17th of that year, and the com­
mission was organized on the 15th 
of the same month. The Arcadia was 
purchased from the citizens’ commit­
tee and continued to run in opposi­
tion to the company’s steamers. The 
commission purchased the steamer 
Annex II from United States parties 
for $25,(TOO. When the steamer arriv­
ed in Dartmouth on July 11, 1890, 
thousands of people cçowded on a 
movable platform at the end of Law­
ler’s wharf (now Wentzell’s) where 
the steamer was being moored. The 
great weight caused the platform to 
collapse and a number of people were 
thrown into the water. Much excite­
ment prevailed, and four persons 
Miss Bessie Foster, daughter of the 
late Edward Foster, Ella Synott, 
daughter of the late Michael Synott, 
Peter Boyle and a colored lad, John 
Bundy, were drowned. This boat was 
afterwards named the Halifax, and 
was destroyed by fire about three 
years ago. The hull may still he seen 
at the North West Arm.

After considerable negotiating, the 
Steam Ferry Company sold its pro­
perty to the Dartmouth Ferry Com­
mission for $109,000, which terminat­
ed the contest between the company 
and the citizens. The fare was raised 
to three cents, and in 1891 advanced 
to four cents. Some years later the 
fare was still further advanced to fivq 
cents, which is as high ds the Com­
mission is allowed .to go. The ferry is 
now equipped with a fine fleet of 
steamers. The Dartmouth which was 
built by the old company, the Che­
bucto, built in Scotland fourteen 
years qgo, and the Halifax, also )bpilt 
in Scotland about eighteen months 
ago, now performing the service. 
These steamers are splendidly equip­
ped for the service they are required 
to perform.

Of late years the Commission has 
had considerable trouble with the 
Halifax dock. No agreement could be 
made with the Halifax authorities 
for the leasing of a dock, until a few 
months ago, conditions were agreed 
to *by parties representing Halifax 
City, the owners of the present dock, 
and the Ferry Commission, * whereby 
a lease may be had, and on Jan. 6* 
the citizens voted on the question of 
borrowing $25,000 for terminal im­
provements at Halifax.

ST. MATTHEW S CHURCH IN 1813. 
(Destroyed by fire 1st January, 1857.)

THE GROWTH OF 
PRESBYTERIANISM

Since the starting of the “Re­
corder” in 1813.,

St. Matthew’s was the only church 
at that time.

■ ■ ■ M M .ElJM

(SYCHEV. DR. FORREST, D.D.)
When Halifax was settled, in 1749, 

it was clearly the desire of the authori­
ties that the national Church of Eng­
land should be the established church 
of the new colony. But as there was 
a very considerable number of non­
conformists among the new settlers, 
Colonel Corn wall js treated them with 
perfect fairness. Lots of land were set 
apart for church and raànse, and while 
the government was erecting St. 
Paul’s for^the Church of England, a 
meeting house was built, largely at 
government expense, for the Protes­
tant Dissenters. Almost all of these 
were Congregationalism and Presby­
terians. At first the\ distinction be­
tween them was mft very clearly 
drawn, but after the American revolu­
tion the influence of /the Old World 
became stronger than that of New 
England, from whence a large number 
of the Congregationalism came, and 
the church became distinctively Pres­
byterian. During the first fifty years 
of its history the city experienced 
many vicissitudes of fortune, and very 
little real progress was made.

At the time of the starting of the 
Recorder, in 1813, St. Matthew’s was 
the only Presbyterian Church in Hali­
fax and Dartmouth. There were only 
about twenty in the Maritime Pro- 
vineefe, and not twice that number in 
all Canada. The Halifax congregation 
was not large, but it contained quite a 
number of men and women who were 
leaders in every religious, moral and 
educational work. The Rev. Archi­
bald Gray, D. D., a graduate of Aber­
deen, a man of fine scholarship and 
decided ability, was the minister. He 
died in 1820.

In 1818 St. Andrew’s Church was 
organized. It occupied the building, 
which still stands on the southeast 
corner of Prince and Barrington 
streets. The congregation worshipped 
there till it* removed to its present 
commodious church on Tobin street.

In 1842 a congregation was organ­
ized in the building now known as 
Gerrish Hall. It removed to Barring­
ton street in 1848, when it took the 
name of Chalmers Church. It did 
excellent work there until 1905, when 
its field ceased to be a residential dis­
trict, being wholly given up to busi­
ness. The congregation then dis­
banded, its members being divided 
among the other churches. In 1843 
another congregation, Poplar Grove, 
was formed, with the Rev. P. G. Mc­
Gregor as pastor. It afterwards re­
moved to North Park street. It was 
always a live congregation, foremost 
in every good work In 1803 another 
congregation, St. John’s, was formed 
in Gerrish Hall. It repioved to its 
present building in 1807.' In 1808 the 
Grove Congregation was formed at 
Richmond. In 1873 Fort Massey con­
gregation wzis organized to accommo­
date the rapidly increasing population 
to the southwest of the city, lu 1888 
ft congregation was started in Co­
burg Road. It assumed the name of 
Chalmers’ Church when the congrega­
tion in Barrington street was dis­
banded. In addition to these in the 
city proper, there is a huge and 

..flourishing congregation in Dart­
mouth, and a small congregation ;«,t 
the. North-West Arm and Rockiiig-

The Presbyterian Church has steadily 
grown with the growth of our city, so 
that the one comparatively small con­
gregation of 1813 is now represented 
by nine congregations. During these 
years the Presbyterian Church has 
played a prominent part in everything

Fertaining to the welfare of our city 
t lias had in its pulpit men of un­

doubted ability, marked scholarship 
and earnest piety, while its laymen 
have ever been prominent and active in 
every good work. A church that had in 
its pulpit at one time, Burns, Grant, 
Pitblado, McGregor, McKnight and 
Falconer, with a number of younger 
men, could not fail to influence the liffe 
of our city. One has only tx> read th(T‘ 
history of our benevolent institutions 
to see the large part the Presbyterians 
have taken in founding and maintain­
ing almost every one of them. At the 
same time they have always been in 
the very forefront of e\;ery movement 
for the moral improvement of our 
city. The liberality of the Presby­
terian people has always been high.
It has steadily increased with the 
growth of wealth. Last year the 
churches of Halifax and Dartmouth 
contributed very nearly fifty thousand 
dollars for religious purposes. The 
actual sum was $49,800. Two of our 
congregations suppoifcjhissionaries in 
the foreign field, while the contribu­
tions from the others are sufficient to 
pay for a third missionary, and half 
the support of a fourth.

The progress of Presbyterianism in 
the city has been smaller than the 
growth in the Provinces and in the 
Dominion. The increase of population 
in the city has not been so great as in 
many other places. When the Re­
corder started Canada was small 
compared with that of to-day. At that 
time we had only about forty small 
weak congregations in the whole of 
what is now the Dominion. Last 
year’s returns show 2,336, besides 2,013 
Home Missions. Then there was not 
a single foreign missionary frqpi any 
colony of the empire laboring for the 
conversion of the heathen. To-day 
there are 208 Canadian Presbyterians 
laboring in the’ foreign field. The 
annuaWoreign missionary revenue is 
$370,985. Theu we had not a single 
theological college ; now we have eight. 
Then the church was weak and poor. 
Last year’s statistical returns show 
that the church owns $22,338,834 of 
church property, and has an-annual 
income of $4,820,002.

We do not think we have any cause 
to boast, and we certainly have no 
desire to make comparisons with other 
bodies of Christians, who have all 
done well. But we do thank God for 
His goodness, and for the honour He 
has conferred upon us in permitting us 
to do something for His cause.

ESTABLISHED 1862.

The Acadia Fire Insurance Co.
Directors.

Cj C. Blackadar,
A. E. Jones, - 
Donald Keith, 
Freeman Elliot, 
Charles H. Mitchell, 
Qeo. R. Hart, - 
Wm. M. P. Webster,

President. 
Vice-Prfesident. 

¥ Director.

50 Years of Usefulness.
On December 8, 1912, the Acadia Fire Insurance Company rounded out 50 

Years of business history. That means something in the hazardous business of 
Fire Insurance. It means unshaken stability. The smoke of many severe 
conflagrations has darkened the sky over its head, but it has emerged triumphantly 
from-the ordeals of jfitlf a century, and enters the second half stronger than ever.

The value of this Insurance Institution for the past fifty years cannot be measured by 
figures. No direct balance sheet of profit and loss can exhibit its utility. The general application, 

^ and popular acceptance of, Acadia Fire Policies that began with the first year’s life have multiplied 
a hundred fold within living memory. It is impossible to conceive the benefits that have accrued 
to the insured, and to the upbuilding of the community served.

Facts and Figures.
While the profits of Fire Insurance business fluctuate considerably from year to year, and seem 

even to follow cycles of elevation and depression, the splendid strength of this Company is evidenced 
by total assets of $067,001.00, which after allowing for ALL LIABILITIES, including unpaid losses, 
and the reserve of unearned premiums, computed on the basis of Government requirements, the 
SURPLUS TO POLICY HOLDERS is $560,436.90.

During the past 50 Years of its business existence, the Company paid out in Casfi Dividends to 
date $871,750, and in addition stock bonuses to the amount of $200,000, making the total disbursements 
to its shareholders over $1,071,750. Losses incurred and paid three-quarters of a million.

You Should Insure in the Acadia.
The Company offers the most Liberal Conditions and Unquestionable 

Security against loss and damage by Fire and Lightning, and as a Canadian 
Institution we solicit the business of Canadians on the ground that we are as
strong as the strongest for any liability we assume.

The Acadia Fire Insurance Co.
HEAD OFFICE, 
R. K. ELLIOT, 
BRANCHES,

HALIFAX, N. S. 
Secy.-Treas. 

Toronto and Winnipeg.

ST. MARY'S CHURCH IN 1813.

ROMAN CATHOLICS
IN HALIFAX

100 years ago worshipped in 
small church.

Arrival of Bishop Burke an import­
ant event.

DARTMOUTH FERRY BOAT •'HALI FAX ”—1913.

Longard Brothers
Consulting Engineers, Patentees and Manufacturers of 
Steam and Hot Water Boilers, and Constructors of Power 
and Heating and Ventilating Installations of all kinds.

The history of the above house is of a very interesting character, it having 
commenced its career as long ago as the yèar 1812. Its founder was John Ixmgard, 
the grandfather of the present proprietors, who are Messrs. J. P. & (J. V. Ixmgard! 
The house has thus been in existence over a century, its ownership descending from 
father to son and grandson for three generations.

Messrs. J. P. & C. C. Longard have been identifièd with the business for a period 
of about 40 years. It is interesting here to note that John Longard, the founder of the 
enterprise, was the first man to institute a brass foundry in Nova Scotia.

The firm to-day can be said to represent the progressive spirit of the times, and 
stands prominent among productive industrial establishments of the Lowjer Provinces.

“A HUNDRED YEARS TO COME.”
Where, where will be the birds that sing,

A hundred years to come?
The flow'rs that now* in beduty spring,

A hundred years to come?
The rosy lips, the lofty brow.
The heart that beats so gaily now.
Oh, where will be Love's beaming eye,
Joy’s pleasant smile and sorrow's sigh,

A hundred years to come,
A hundred years to come ?

WhoU press for gold yon crowded street,
A hundred years to come ?

Who!» tread this church with willing feet,
A hundred years to come?

Pale, trembling age, and fiery youth.
And childhood with its heart of truth.
The rich, the poor, on land and sea.
Where will the mighty millions be .

A hundred years to come,
A hundred yeafs to come?

We all within oar graves shall sleep,
A hundred years to come ;

No living soul for us will weep,
A hundred years to come ;

Büt other men our lands will till.
And others then our streets will fill.
While other birds will sing as gay.
And bright the sunshine as to-duy,

A hundred years to come,
A hundred years to come.

One hundred years ago the Roman 
Catholics in Halifax were compara­
tively few in number. Although the 
obnoxious ^legislation against Catho 
ics which prevented a Catholic from 
holding land except by grant direct 
from the Crown and which required 
all priests to depart from the Pro­
vince had been repealed in 1783 the 
growth of the church was hampered 
%or many years afterwards. A most 
important event in the history of 
the Church in Halifax Was the ar 
rival of Right Rev. Dr. Edmund 
Burke in 1801. That eminent prelate 
had previously labored as a mission­
ary in Quebec, Ohio and Western 
New York. A letter written by him 
at a point Within a few miles from 
Miami Fort illustrates the condit­
ions of some mission work at Chat 
time. “This is the last and most 
distant parish inhabited by Catholics 
on this earth. In it is neither law, 
justice nor subjection; you never 
meet a man either Indian or Cana­
dian, without his gun in his hand, 
and his knife at his breast. At night 
the howling of the wolves in pursuit 
of deer, the growling of the bear 
the hissing of the rattlesnake, the 
War-whoop of the Indian and the 
sound of his rifle are rather dis 
agreeabl? sounds, but not, at all 
uncommon. ’ ’

Dr. Burke arrived in Halifax from 
Quebec after a voyage of twelve 
days. On the day of his arrival he 
began ,a Register of Baptisms, Mar­
riages and Interments for the Church 
of St. Peters which was then the only 
Catholic church in the city. It had 
been built on a modest scale in 1784, 
on a site near the present Cathedral. 
In a letter to the Bishop of Quebec 
Dr. Burke wrote concerning it.

“Our church is small for the con­
gregation, but it is pretty. Instead 
of a sanctuary choir we have in an 
organ loft at the end a number 
of poor singers who bellow 
forth a species of figured music 
in a way to break the tympanum of 
one’s $ars. It wiy take time to sub­
stitute for this the music of the 
church."

From 1801 to 1820 he labored zeal­
ously in Halifax and his life here is 
practically the history of the Catho­
lic church in Halifax during that 
period. One of his first undertakings
was to provide suitable education tor 
the little ones of his flock. The old 
presbytery which had been built in 
1785 was removed to another site 
and fitted up as a school for girls. 
The Catholic women of the congre­
gation formed a society to provide 
funds foT the payment of teachers. 
The boyn had class-rooms in the 
Glebe House, which also served as 
a residence for Bishop Burke and 
his assistant.

In the “Memoirs of Dr. Burke" 
there is the following reference to 
the arduous conditions of rural visit­
ing in those days.

“The visitation of the various 
missions of Nova Scotia was no 
light task in those days. True 
weekly coach had been running be­
tween Halifax and Windsor since 
1816. But it was a long tiresome 
journey from Windsor to St. Mary’s 
Bay, a good 140 miles, and 50 more 
from Church Point to Eel Brook. 
Should one prefer to go by water, 
there was no trim steamer to bear 
one quickly over the moaning waves; 
not even a regular packet in which 
some slight accomodation might be 
found. No; one must depend on some 
chance fishing smack, in which for 
days, perhaps, one must endure all 
the concentrated nausèa of bilge 
water, stuffy atmosphere, and fishy

His biographer tells us that Dr. 
Burke waged some, hotly contested 
controversial battles, but avoided 
personal abuse, and never cherished 
feelings of animosity. “For years he 
had written against the Rev. Mr. 
McCullough, a Presbyterian minis­
ter residing at Piotou. Neither had 
ever met the other. One day Bishop 
Burke noticing a stranger on the 
street, enquired his name. He was 
informed that it was Mr. McCul­
lough, his opponent. Dr. Burke went 
up to his old-time foe, introduced 
himself, invited him to his house 
where they passed an hour or two in 
friendly conversation. Each probably 
found that the other was not so 
black as he had imagined.”

Notwithstanding his vast cares he 
had a lively humour. We are told 
that the grôund of the old cemetery 
was damp and slightly boggy. Oqe 
member of the congregation, who 
concluded he had a mission to right 
all wrongs, was very persistent in 
advocating a drain, and at every 
meeting of the parishioners descanted 
on the necessity of having the 
ground thoroughly dry. On one oc­
casion being more prosy than usual 
on his favorite theme, Dr. Burke 
quietly -remarked, “Oh, my dear sir, 
do not be over anxious for a dry 
resting place; perhaps water is the 
very thing you will be wishing for in 
the next world.”

Bishop Plessis of Quebec visited 
Halifax in 1815. (In his diary of the 
visit Dr. Burke gives an illuminating 
description of the status of ttye 
church in Halifax at that period,— 

In consequeye of some old govern
ment prejudice Catholics are excluded 
from all prominent places in the 
Council, at the Bar, and in the House 
of Representatives. Is this a misfor­
tune for them? No, for the fewer the 
pretensions men have to earthly hon­
ors, the more as it is universally ad­
mitted, do they raise thèmselves to­
wards the only solid hope, the herit­
age of heaven. Merchants, many of 
whom have pretty compact fortunes, 
workmen, farmers and domestics, 
compose the Catholic Church of Hali­
fax. If it is not conspicuous by the 
rank which its children hold in the 
world, it is so by their fervotir and 
the docility of their faith. The idea 
has never occurred to these Cathol­
ics that their religion is restricted 
to attendance at mass and a liking 
for good sermons. When one reflects 
that out of about six hundred com- 

t municants there were not ten who 
’had neglected? the sacraments in 
Lent; when one sees them as diligent 
in attending mass on week days as 
they were during the Bishop’s stay 
amongst them; when one is witness 
to the eagerness with which they be­
sieged the confessional, to the extent 
of keeping two or three priests busy

during entire mornings; when one 
finds the sacristy full of children who 
come every day to catechism, the 
girls in the morning, the boys in the 
evening, when one hears of the am­
bition of the parents to procure for 
their children a place among those 
who serve in the Sanctuary, nothing 
more is needed to convince one that 
the spirit of religion is as fervent 
here as in any other Christian com­
munity of the Diocese of Quebec.”

The little church of St. Peter’s was 
considerably enlarged in 1810 but was 
soon afterwards found too small tor 
the constantly increasing member-

In a letter dated June 20th, 1820, 
the Bishop says:—“We have just be­
gun to build a Cathedral which will 
cost us at the least ten thousand 
pounds sterling.” Haliburton in his 
history, 1829, speaking of the church­
es'of Halifax says,—“There is noth­
ing remarkable in the appearance of 
any of these buildings, except the 
Catholic Chapel, which is an elegant 
and spacious structure, built of cut 
free' stone.”

This church, was subsequently en­
larged and modernized under Arch­
bishop Connolly, the free-stone front 
being replaced by the present noble 
facade and stately spire.

The following extract from an 
obituary in the Acadian Recorder of 
December 2nd, 1820, tells us some­
thing of this remarkable man,—

“On Wednesday last, universally 
regretted, as he lived respected, the 
Rt. Rev. Dr. Edmund Burke, in the 
78th year of his age. He was a native 
of the Co. Kildare, (Ireland), and 
parish priest of the town of Kildare; 
which he vacated at the frequent and 
urgent solicitations of some of the 
professors of the Seminary of Que­
bec, and arrived in Lower Canada 
2nd of August, 1786. There he offici­
ated as a clergyman, and taught the 
higher branches of mathematics and 
philosophy with great credit to him­
self and benefit to the numerous stu­
dents, who crowded to hear the lec­
tures of a man celebrated in the 
University of Paris, as excelling 
most <nen of his day in mathemati­
cal science, and also the classics, 
particularly in the Greek and Hebrew 
languages, till Lord Dorchester ap­
pointed him, as a faithful and cap­
able person, to reconcile the many 
powerful tribes of Indians, inhabit­
ing the country around Lake Super­
ior, and 4;he back parts of the Ohio 
and the Louisiana, who at that time 
manifested dispositions very hostile 
to the British Government. Among 
the savage tribes of Indians he resid­
ed six or seven years, suffering every 
privation that civilized man could 
endure, till hé' fully accomplished the 
object of his mission. He instructed 
the heathen Indian in the principles 
of the Christian religion, and im­
pressed on his mind a know­
ledge of the true living God,— 
by whose assistance he incul­
cated into his savage mind 
sentiments of loyalty, obedience and? 
lasting friendship for his great world­
ly father, King George the Third.”

Looking back to that> period, and 
contrasting the condition of the 
church in Halifax in 1913 with its 
state in 1813, Catholics may realize 
what they owe to the éminent mis­
sionary who labored so steadfastly in 
those old days. If they to-day take a 
natural pride in their churches, 
crowded at all services, early and 
late, with devout congregations, and 
in their flourishing Sunday Schools, 
in their zealous priesthood, and in 
their self-sacrificing nuns and sis­
ters of charity, in their educational 
institutions and their charitable and 
benevolent societies, in the unity of 
prelate, priest and people in all 
things that make for spirituality and 
stability, they should not forget how 
muçh they owe to the great mission­
ary whose courage and vision were 
manifested a century ago. As his 
biographer truly said:

“The effects of his labours would 
not end; they were seed—germs of 
noblest deeds; fecundated by divine 
grace, and would pullulate and blos­
som, and fructify in an ever-increas­
ing ratio for the glory of God and 
the good of souls.”
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THE OLD ROUND CHURCH, (ST. GEORGE’S.)

ROUND CHURCH
A LANDMARK.

Was a creation of the Duke 
of Kent.

Neared its completion about 1813.

(BY REV. h. W. CUNNINGHAM.)

Another landmark of old Halifax is 
the Duke of Kent’s creation, the 
Round Church. The cut of it as it 
stood in 1814, the year after the 
“ACADIAN RECORDER” was bom, 
is from a photograph of an old paint­
ing by a lady of Halifax of that 
year. It was purchased by the present 
Rector of St. George*s, in July, 1901 
when the centennial of the opening of 
the church was kept with fitting ser­
vices, those who parted with it, re­
questing that it be preserved by the 
church as an heirloom. From an his­
toric point of view, it is one of the 
most interesting paintings existing in 
Halifax to-day, and shows us the 
Round Church as the Haligonians of 
1813 viewed it, allowing of course for 
the fact that the painting gives many 
evidences of the amateur, proportion 
and perspective being somewhat out. 
It would appear as if the 1814 fences 
were the models set for future gener­
ations! The arrangements for com­
mencing the building of the new St. 
George’s were nearing completion 
when the beloved German pastor, the 
Rev. B. M. Houseal passed to his re­
ward March 9th, 1799.

In our short account of his life in 
connection with the Little Dutch 
Church, it was pointed out that the 
Duke of Kent had made him Chap­
lain of one of his favorite regiments; 
we may also note that one of his 
daughters married the Hon. Captain 
Seymour, A.D.G., to His Royal High­
ness. These circumstances would lead 
us to infer that Prince Edward had 
large interest in this fast increasing 
congregation, which while still legal 
ly a Mission of St. Paul’s parish, had 
nevertheless a quasi-independent char­
acter. A site had been obtained for 
the new church by a deed of sale 
from Michael Schnerr and wife at a 
cost of>120 pounds, and the inten­
tion was to build a church large en­
ough to allow room for increase and 
with accommodation for the soldiers 
of the garrison.

The person who actually drew the 
plans of the Round Church was Mr. 
William Hughes-, who had come over 
in 1794 with the Duke of Kent, and 
who became Master Builder to His 
Majesty’s Dockyard. (A child, fourth 
in lineal descent from Mr. W. Hughes 
was baptized in St. George’s, bn July 

19, 1901, the exact date of the cen­
tennial of the ^opening, its name be­
ing Herbert Edward St. George Taun­
ton). Associated in the building of 
the church, and in carrying out the 
Duke’s designs were Mr. John Mer­
rick and Mr. J. Flieger, of the Sur­
veyor General’s Department, the lat­
ter'being, as was Hughes, a member 
of St. George’s. It is said that the 
Duke of Kent procured £500 from thé 
British Government, on condition 
that his plans were followed out, 
which condition was accepted. The 
Records have no statement of this 
grant, but under date Jan. 1st, 1800, 
there is this entry: “One of the El­
ders informed the meeting that the 
confirmation of the appointment of 
Rev. G. Wright had come from Great 
Britain and likewise that His Majes­
ty (King George III) had been pleas­
ed to grant two hundred pounds ster­
ling towards building a new 
church.”

The Legislature also voted £500 to­
ward the building fund. The old MS. 
list of contributors is still in exist­
ence, and heading the list is:

The Duke of Kent, paid, £10
Sir John Wentworth, not paid, £30
Speaking of contributions leads us 

to note that further along in the 
history of the church, another grant 
of £500 was made from a fund in 
the hands of the Government accum­
ulated through customs dues and the 
sale of 30,000 stacks of arms, seized 
by the British at the taking of. the 

■- . .. Maine, in the War

— The coiner stone of Government 
House was laid 11th Sept., 1800. The 
building was first occupied as a resi­
dence about 1805, but was not com­
pleted unty 1807. It cost about £18,000.

— Life is the mirror of king and 
slave—

’Tis just what we are and do ;
Then give to the world the best 

you have,
And the best will come back to 

you.

port of Castine, 
of 1812.

This list of subscribers is an in­
teresting study in names of persons 
living here in 1799. We find J. Hal­
liburton, J. J. Blowers, Thomas, 
James and Wm. Oochran, A. Brymer, 
Richard J. Uniacke, Thos. Goudge, 
Robt. Stauser, B. James, Ephraim 
Whiston, Foster Hutchinson, Christ­
opher and Charles Blackadare (so 
spelt) and others.

The sacred edifice was not com­
pleted out of hand, but slowly as the 
money came in and it is handed down, 
that for some time after its first use, 
a canvas covering was used to keep 
out the snow and rain.

The peculiar shape of the church 
made it more expensive to build than 
the ordinary type of Church edifice 
and it was not until about 1813 that 
the church neared its completion. 
But within fifteen months from the 
laying of the corner stone, April 10, 
18t)0, it had progressed far enough to 
be used for Divine Service, and there­
fore, on July 19, 1801, service was per­
formed within its walls for the first 
time. The following is a word for 
word copy of the entry:
Halifax, Nçva Scotia, 19th July, 1801. 
This day being Sunday, the new 
Church of St. George was opened with 
Divine Service, when the Reverend 
Mr. Wright delivered an excellent 
sermon on that occasion, and was as­
sisted in performing that service by 
the Reverend Mr. Stanser, Rector oi 
St. Paul’s. His Excellency Lieuten­
ant-Governor, Sir John Wentworth, 
Lt.-General Bowyer, Commanding His 
Majesty's forces, with their respective 
suits (sic) with the principal Inhabi­
tants of this Town attended the 
solemnity, and proper music having 
been provided several German hymns 
and anthems were sung and masterly 
performed to the satisfaction of a 
numerous congregation.

According to the record the corner 
stone had been laid by Sir John 
Wentworth “in the presence of the 
Commissioners, and a number of re­
spectable gentlemen.”

We find that the total amount of 
all expenses incurred in building the 
new church from Jan 1st. 1800 to 
Dec. 31, 1891 was £2356 6s. 2*d with 
a debt of £919 6e 9d.

The. Duke of Kent left Halifax for 
good in summer of 1800 so that 
he never saw the church completed in 
which he took so great an interest 

At the death of the German Pastor 
a burning question çrose as to wheth­
er his successor should be a Ger­
man or an English speaking minis­
ter. The question was decided by a 
full meeting after service April 7, 
1799 there being 17 for Rev. Mr. 
Wright and 11 for a German. Rui*s 
were drawn up and adopted at the 
same meeting laying down among, 
other things, that the Prayers and

Sermon were to be in English, the 
psalms and other music in German. 
Mr. Wright was a man well advanced 
in years when asked to take charge 
of this congregation still bi-lingual 
but fast becoming English in speech 
and worship, and which in 1808 issu­
ed a declaration of loyalty to the Es- 
established Church and its services. 
In 1817 he was laid aside with paraly­
sis, and Rev. Benjamin Gerrish Gray 
became his assistant, which position 
he held till 1819 in which year Rev. 
Geo. Wright died at his house 17 
Hollis St. Dr. Gray remained till 
1825 when he left to take charge of 
the church at St. John N. B. He 
took with him an oil painting by 
himself of “The Good Shepherd” 
which for several years hung over 
the Holy Table. It was during his 
ministry that the first organ was 
placed in the gallery.

It was during. Dr. Gray’s incum­
bency that the old warrior Governor 
Des Barres Was buried beneath the 
Church Nov. 1st. 1824. He was 103 
years of age less one month. After 
his retirement from public life he 
lived at his residence in Poplar 
Grove, and took great interest in 
the erection of the Round Chiirch. 
He had a pew in it afterwards. He 
founded Sydney, and was appointed 
Governor of ,C. B. and afterwards of 
P. E.Island. His plans and maps, of 
the coast of Nova Scotia are mar­
vels of industry and scientific abili­
ty in that line. He was one of 
Wolfe’s, officers at Quebec and was 
present at the siege of Louisburg. 
“Martha DesBarres” lies by his side, 
buried in 1821. There were formerly 
two tombstones standing at the 
heads of these two vaults, but they 
have disappeared Jh some myster­
ious way. In the year 1821 a reso­
lution was passed that £25 should 
Ve paid for the burial of any person 
under the body of the Church. Ex­
plicit directions are given as to the 
vault and lead coffin “it being 
thought necessary for the health of 
the congregation, especially in the 
summer season.”

In 1827 the Parish of St. George 
was legally formed out of the old 
mother Parish of St. Paul, which 
had done so much to nurture and en­
courage the early .growth of what 
in after years, was to be one of the 
“married daughters,” setting up 
house-keeping for herself. In this year 
also the apsidal additions were made 
to the Church at least, that on the 
East, lately replaced by the new 
entrance and in the same year on 
April 17th, 1827, occurred the event 
which was until then impossible, ow­
ing to debts and incompleteness, viz; 
the consecration of the Church by 
Bishop John Ingliss The money to 
build the .eastern apse came largely 
from England from that venerable 
Society for the Propagation of the 
Gospel which had at the fiçst given 
towards the ^building fundi 
Previous to this erection, entry was1 
made from a high platform, ap­
proached by stairs.

The Rev. Robt. Fitzgerald Uniacke 
a member of a family which had 
made its mark in the history of our 
Province came in 1825, saw the par­
ish attain its independence and enter 
on an era of growth and prosperity.

In Mr. Uniacke’s time the structur­
al arrangement of the pews was 
changed owing to the demand for 
sittings. Sir Samuel Cunard was a 
constant attendant and supporter of 
the Church and his children were 
baptized in St. George’s.

In 1835 the year in which Halley’s 
Comet appeared, just 75 years after 
its discoverer prophesied that it 
would reappear, a weather-vane was 
constructed to resemble a comet. 
There are three records in the gilded 
ball supporting it, of 1868, 1884 and 
1907, dates when the Church was 
painted and the comet attended to. 
The old organ which has recently 
been replaced by a new one was 
purchased in 1856, having been on 
view at the Great Exhibition 1851.

In 1884 under Rev. Francis Par­
tridge the arrangements of the in­
terior of the western apse, the chan­
cel, were altered to what it is today 
and the organ of 1856 taken down 
and placed in the present loft. The 
records of St. George’s are complete 
from 1756 onwards, except the book 
containing the -sears 1814-1818, which 
-as lost aboutj.830.

St. George’s Cnurch does not boast 
of many tablets, l^jt those which

OLD ST. PAUL’S
CHURCH IN 1813.

Army and Navy well represen­
ted in the congregation 

during the war.

Bishop Inglis used the 
Cathedral.

have been erected are*interesting in 
their way. In the gallery is a memor­
ial to three men of the Welch Fusil­
iers, Corporal St. Murdock and Pri­
vates Douglas and Turton who were 
killed at the attack on Sauffriere, 
Martinique, 1809. At the foqt is the 
well-known line from Horace:

“Dulce et Decorum est pro patria

For years the words ‘“pro patria” 
were erased by some unknown hand 
and the words "pro penny a day” 
written above. This undue reflection 
was obliterated when discovered. The 
most ancient tablet is that of Otto 
William Schwartz, his wife Anna 
Justina, and son, John Philip; the 
mother died in 1784, the father in 
1785 and the son 1786. Mr. and Mrs. 
Schwartz were buried beneath the old 
German Church whose building he 
had so much aided, but in 1831 the 
tablet was removed to this church, 
Dr. Michael Parker of Dewedstown, 
Ireland, was a surgeon in the Royal 
Artillery, • A faithful man and feared 
God above many.

There is also a monument to the 
memory of Elizabeth Gray, the wife 
of Dr. Gray, Minister of St. George’s 
who with her maid perished in a fire 
at St. John, N.B., 1833. The tablet 
was erected by the “Females of the 
congregation.”

The remaining tablets are to John 
Hamilton Braine, a well known mer­
chant and resident of the North End, 
to Frances Jane Gallagher, a young 
lady of 19, and Stephen Wastie De- 
Blois, a former merchant of Halifax.

In the chancel are two tablets, one 
to Rev. Thos. Crisp who waq curate 
and died of typhoid in 1866, the other 
to Rev. R. F. Uniacke, for 45 years 
rector, “a fearless defender of the 
doctrines of the Reformers, a true 
pastor and faithful friend.”

We hope to see placed in the 
Church at no very distant date me­
morials to Governor DesBarres and 
Sir Samuel Cunard, both in their 
time “famous men” and pew-hold­
ers in the Round Church.

— The Dockyard was first establish­
ed in Halifax in 1758. It was extended 
and improved in 1769. The date over 
the gate is 1770.

— The Horticultural GardensNvere 
started in 1854. The Public Gardens 
opened in 1874, combining the two. 
The Gardens consist of 17J acres..

— In the Recorder of 1813 appears 
the following :

A short time since, were joined in 
the silken bands of Hymen, Mr. Sam­
uel Barber to Miss Pina Gunthrop, 
both of Downham Market, Suffolk. 
The united ages of the pair of turtle 
doves amounted to 130 years.
“ If love’s a flame that's kindled by desire, 
An old stick is surely best, because it’s drier.’

(BY ReY. ARCHDEACON ARMITAGE.)

The appparance of historic St. Paul’s, 
in January, 1813, was/not very differ­
ent to the church e& it stood in the 
memory of ql<L-'Haligonians before 
Confederation./ It was not until after 
1867 that the present wings and chancel 
were built, the wings in 1868, and the 
chancel in 1872. Mr. Peter Lynch, in 
one of his charming “ Reminiscences,” 
said that St. Paul’s was originally 90 
feet in length by 56 feet in width. In 
1812, 15 feet 6 inches, including the 
northern vestibule, were added to the 
building. St, Paul’s is now 133 feet 6 
inches in length*.and 80 feet wide, and 
seats about.2,000 persons.

In 1812, very considerable improve­
ments were made to the Churfch build­
ing. The present north front was 
built. The record runs that a new 
tower and steeple were erected thereon, 
of the same material and dimensions 
as the old one. There was one window 
in each story. The present Rector’s 
Vestry was built, and what is known 
as the Library Vestry, as well. There 
is an old print which shows an en­
trance from Barrington Street, sugges­
tive of a gallery entrance from that 
direction. In 1812 the present gallery 
stairs and landings were erected, from 
the main north door of the Church.

The contractor for the work was Mr. 
Charles Dun brack, and he was under 
the direct supervision of Mr. Edward 
Pryor, to whom a special vote of 
thanks Was given—accompanied by a 
gratuity in June, 1814. It is not 
definitely known when the splendid 
Royal Arms, which were so much ad­
mired by the Duke of Connaught, 
on his recent visit to the church, 
were erected, but it is clear that 
they were placed in their present posi­
tion at this time, for the contractor v 
concludes his contract in these words :
“ And a proper space and place left for 
the King’s Arms, and as I do not pro­
fess the carving business, the carved 
ornament proposed is not understood 
to be in my contract.”

This addition not only enlarged the 
seating accommodation of the Church, 
but greatly enhanced its appearance. 
The three famous bells' of St. Paul’s 
were presented by Mr. Andrew Bel­
cher, sou of Chief Justice Belcher, in 
this year. They were imported from 
England, per ship “Gratitude,” and 
cost £131 15s. and lOd.

The interior of the Church at this 
period must have been very handsonfe.,
A short time previously, crimson vel­
vet fittings for the Communion Table, 
Pulpit and Reading Desk, had been 
imported from England at a first cost 
of £109 13s. and 7d. The large win- " 
do tv in the chancel end was draped with 
rich colored curtains. The Beadle was 
gorgeously arrayed in a drab cloth 
coat, with capes trimmed with gold 
lace, and lie was also provided with 
a lace trimmed hat. In the centre 
aisle, in special seats, sat the Army 
and Navy, The Governor’s pew was 
ornamented with a canopy and tee 
King’s Anns. The ordinary pews 
were expensive to the holders jof 
sitting^. About this time Mr. Ed­
ward Pryor paid £111 for the good­
will of pew No. 10, and Mr. John 
Moody £75 for pew No. 15. The pews 
in St. Paul’s were apparently much 
more expensive than in St. Matthew’s, 
for in the latter Church, in 1812, five 
side pews were sold at prices ranging 
from £25 to £36. The organ and 
choir were in the north gallery, -the 
historic Spanish organ discoursed 
sweet music, and the choir diet splendid 
service, which was fully appreciated.

The Bishop of Nova Scotia, in 1813, 
was the lion, and Right Rev. Charles- 
Inglis, who frequently officiated at St. 
Paul’s, which he used as his Cathedral. 
There were theu but fifteen parishes in 
all Nova Scotia. Sir Bren ton Halli­
burton has left us a description of - 
Bishop Charles Inglis. He was slight 
in figure, his face marked by intelli­
gence, and all his actions dignified. 
He preached with marked earnestness, 
and with an energetic manner. At 
this period the Bishop was always 
attended by bis son, the Rev. Dr. 
John Inglis, who acted as his chaplain, 

jui^ who became Rector of St. Paul’s 
three years later. Dr. John Inglis‘has 
been described as ofte of the most 
courtly men of his time. He was 
afterwards known as the Chesterfield 
of the Episcopal bench.

The Rector of St. Paul's was the 
Rev. Robert Stauser. The late Mrs. 
Gossip, mother of Mrs. W. J. Wallace, 
who died a few years ago, had many 
reminiscences of Dr. Stanser, while 
there are still with us a number who 
remember Dr. Jolm Inglis^uite well. 
Indeed, Mrs. Wright, of 128 Morris 
Street, who is almost as old as the Re­
corder, can tell many a story of the 
“good Bishop,” as he was called. 
Bishop Charles Inglis described Dp. 
Stauser as “ a genteel young man,” and 
in writing of his preaching, said : “ His 
voice is good, loud, rather than 
strong.” The year 1812 had been a 
very successful one in St. Paul’s 
Church. No less than 300 persons had 
joined the congregation, and the Rec­
tor’s stipend had been increased by 
£300. The Rev. Hibbert Birmey had 
just been ordained, and was a Ynost 
useful assistant in Church work.

«lu- congregation of St. Paul’s, at 
this time, was made up of the princi­
pal people in the Community. The 
Governor was a constant worshipper, 
the Admiral, the General, the Chief 
Justice, the Judges, were all in their 
places, and representative citizens in 
professional and commercial life. The 
year of the Recorder’s birth was a 
notable one in military and naval 
annals. The war made it necessary to 
have both army and navy well repre­
sented. The following famous regi­
ments were in the garrison : The 8th, 
20tb, 27th, 30th, 62nd, 7th Royal Fusi­
liers, 64th, 89th, under Colonel West- 
field ; 08th, Colonel Bazelgette ,* 09th, 
Colonel Addison ; 102nd, 10th Royal 
Veteran Battalion, under Colonel Mc­
Laughlin, and the Royal Staff Corps.

There wez-e many baptisms, in St. 
Paul’s Church during the year 1813, 
the first year of The Acadian Recor­
der. Four typical names are selected.
On the 17th January there was Norman 
Fitzgerald, son of Crofton Uniacke.
It is indeed a noble name, and goes 
back to the heroic days when the Nor­
man Lord of the famous Geraldine line 
was making war against a native Irish 
prince. War was then their native 
element, as Davis sings : ^

" "Tis full a thousand years 
Since 'mid the Tuscnfl vineyards, bright flashed 

theor battle spears
When Capet seized the crown of France, their 

iron shields were known.
And their sabre-dint struck terror on the banks 

of the Garonne.”
On thé occasion under review, the 

Norman Lord had made a breach in a 
castle wall, and in the presence of the 
army asked if there was one man who 
dared to lead the way. , Only one 
stepped forward, a young knight named 
Fitzgerald. In memory of his glorious 
deed of prowess, he was given a new 
name—Unions, or “the only one", from 
which sprang Uniacke. On the 2nd 
day of April, was baptized William 
Fraser Boggs. This name is an historic 
one in Halifax, and has been most 

orthily borne by a number of men 
who have contributed to the commer­
cial life of the Maritime metropolis.
On June 15th, was baptized Thomas 
Nicholson Jeffrey, who rose to an im­
portant position in the official life of 
Halifax. He was the son of the Col­
lector of Customs, and was connected 
with the Uniacke family. On the 23rd 
of December was baptized William 
Minns Hoffman, son of Dr. Hoffman, 
a famous surgeon, who was with Sir 
John Moore at Corunna, the friend of 
Collingwood, and who was long an 
ornament to his profession in Halifax.

tar See cut of St. Paul’s on page 10.
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